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1                      PROCEEDINGS

2         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  By the authority vested

3 in me by the Illinois Commerce Commission, I now call

4 Docket Number 14-0366.  This docket concerns the

5 Joint Petition filed by Wayne-White Counties Electric

6 Cooperative and the City of McLeansboro, Illinois

7 requesting approval of the territorial agreement that

8 provides for exclusive electric service areas in

9 Hamilton County, Illinois pursuant to the Electric

10 Supplier Act and the Illinois Municipal Code.

11         May I have the appearances for the record,

12 please?

13         MR. SMITH:  Good morning, Judge.  My name is

14 Gary Lloyd Smith.  My business address is 1204 South

15 Fourth Street, Springfield, Illinois.  I am appearing

16 on behalf of the City of the McLeansboro.

17         MR. TICE:  Jerry Tice, Attorney at Law, 101

18 East Douglas Street, Petersburg, Illinois, appearing

19 on behalf of Wayne-White Counties Electric

20 Cooperative.  And in addition, Jay Fyie, 115

21 Northwest Third Street, Fairfield, Illinois, 62837,

22 appearing as co-counsel on behalf of Wayne-White.

23         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Could you give the last

24 name spelling?
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1         MR. TICE:  Yes.  F-Y-I-E.

2         MR. FYIE:  Jerry, this is Jay Fyie.  You

3 need to correct my address to Northeast Third Street.

4         MR. TICE:  Sorry.  115 Northeast?

5         MR. FYIE:  Correct.

6         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  And for purposes of

7 having a clear record, we have a couple of

8 individuals on the phone.

9         Would you please give your names and the

10 spellings of your last names as well?

11         MR. DONJON:  Yes.  Daryl, first name is

12 D-A-R-Y-L, A. Donjon, D-O-N-J-O-N.  President CEO of

13 Wayne-White Electric Cooperative Incorporated,

14 Wayne-White County Electric Cooperative.  The address

15 is 1501 West Main, Fairfield, Illinois, 62837.

16         And that's all, unless the mayor's on, I

17 guess.

18         MR. SMITH:  I have on my phone, your Honor,

19 Mayor Richard Deitz, D-E-I-T-Z.

20         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Thank you.

21         MR. TICE:  Jay Fyie.  I have got his

22 appearance in here.

23         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Are there any others

24 wishing to enter an appearance?
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1                  (No response.)

2         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Let the record show no

3 response.

4         This matter comes on for an evidentiary

5 hearing this morning.  The parties have filed

6 testimony, which I have received.  And I appreciate

7 the additional maps that were provided with the

8 testimony and the additional detail provided for the

9 various portions of the service territory that are

10 being agreed upon.

11         Prior to beginning the evidentiary hearing,

12 would the parties like to discuss statutory

13 authority?

14         As I had indicated before, I have found

15 various provisions of the Illinois Municipal Code,

16 which I believe are relevant to this proceeding.  The

17 sections of the Illinois Municipal Code that I found

18 to be relevant were Section 11-117-1, Section

19 11-117-1.1, Section 11-117-7.1.  In addition, I found

20 to be relevant portions of the Electric Supplier Act.

21 Those sections would be Section 5, Section 6, and

22 Section 14.

23         Do the parties have anything to discuss

24 regarding statutory authority or the jurisdiction of
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1 the Commission on this proceeding?

2         MR. SMITH:  Well, your Honor, with respect

3 to the Electric Supplier Act, I don't believe it

4 applies to municipalities.  I believe there's -- I

5 didn't come prepared with that statutory reference,

6 but I think that it, by definition, excludes

7 municipalities under that term.  It will include

8 co-ops, but I don't believe it includes

9 municipalities.

10         The parties, with respect to the other

11 statutes under the municipal code that you have

12 cited, have different theories of approval with

13 respect to the Joint Petition.  The Joint Petition

14 does not cite any statutory authority and neither

15 does the Settlement Agreement.

16         The City is looking at this under the

17 definition of public utilities in 65 ILCS 5/11-117-2

18 broadly defines public utilities.  It would then

19 bring it under 11-117-6D, which also requires

20 Commission approval for territorial agreements where

21 cities and utilities are dividing up their territory.

22         MR. TICE:  You finished?

23         MR. SMITH:  I am.

24         MR. TICE:  Your Honor, I think you have
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1 correctly assessed the jurisdiction of the Commission

2 in your references to the statutory authority for

3 Wayne-White, which is a rural electric cooperative as

4 defined under the Electric Supplier Act.  And to the

5 extent that reference is made to the Electric

6 Supplier Act, you have to do that in order to

7 properly define what type of entity Wayne-White is.

8         The municipal code to which you have made

9 reference to provides two statutory sections for

10 municipalities to enter into service area agreements.

11 One is the one you have referred to, and that refers

12 to authority by a municipality to enter into service

13 area agreements with rural electric cooperatives.

14 And it is specific as to the rural electric

15 cooperatives.  That's the 117-1.1 and 7.1.

16         That is the manner in which all previously

17 -- all service area agreements that have been

18 approved by the Illinois Commerce Commission between

19 municipalities and the rural electric cooperatives

20 have been -- that they have based their jurisdiction

21 on.  And I reference you to the service area

22 agreements that have been approved here between the

23 Village of Chatham and Rural Electric Convenience

24 Cooperative, and also between this same rural
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1 electric cooperative, Wayne-White and the City of

2 Fairfield just within the last three or four years.

3         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Do you have docket

4 numbers for either of those?

5         MR. TICE:  I do not because I wasn't

6 anticipating this argument to be made this morning

7 since you had indicated in your phone conference with

8 us you were relying on the particular sections you

9 had told us about this morning.

10         So what Mr. Smith has done this morning has

11 come as a surprise.  I can get you those docket

12 numbers yet this afternoon and e-mail them to you if

13 you would like, and also to Mr. Smith.

14         Again, I would also point out that the

15 municipal sections to which Mr. Smith is alluding to

16 and which he has this morning for the first time made

17 reference to in this proceeding talk about

18 investor-owned public utilities.  That is Section

19 117.6.  And it references both public utility and

20 investor-owned public utility in the same section.

21         So it appears quite obvious to me that

22 proper statutory interpretation would require the

23 application of 117-6 to service area agreements that

24 are entered into between the likes of McLeansboro or
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1 any other electric municipality with electric systems

2 and investor-owned utilities to be brought under that

3 particular section that is 117-6.

4         When you're dealing with a rural electric

5 cooperative, as it is defined in the Electric

6 Supplier Act, you have to bring it under the 117-7.1

7 and 1.1 in order to have the jurisdiction proper.

8         And so I think that you, as the

9 Administrative Law Judge here, and I think the

10 Commission -- it's our position that the Commission,

11 if it relies on those sections that you have cited as

12 the jurisdiction for the Order here that you have

13 properly made that interpretation of the statute.

14         It had been Wayne-White's understanding in

15 this proceeding that because Mr. Smith and I could

16 not agree and because this issue arose early on in

17 the proceedings, both at the circuit court in

18 Hamilton County, as well as during our negotiations

19 for the creation of this service area agreement, that

20 we would -- the parties would remain silent as to the

21 jurisdictional authority for the approval of the

22 service area agreement at the Commission level and

23 allow the Commission to make that decision on its

24 own.  Apparently, this morning, Mr. Smith has changed
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1 his mind with regard to that.

2         If that's the case, we're prepared to brief

3 it and have the Commission make a proper statutory

4 interpretation if that's what the Administrative Law

5 Judge would wish.  I don't think that's necessary.  I

6 think such action would simply delay the whole

7 proceeding here because the parties, as Mr. Smith has

8 alluded to in our previous status hearing, we're

9 anxious to get this matter approved so that the

10 parties can start their summer construction and get

11 electric service to this school before the school

12 session starts in September or early or late August

13 of this year.

14         That electric service has been desirous by

15 the City of McLeansboro for a long time.  That's one

16 of the impetus to the service area agreement in the

17 first place.  And we have to make the switch in

18 electric service during the summer recess of the

19 school facilities so that we don't impact those

20 students.  Therefore, there is a need to get the

21 construction started right away.

22         MR. SMITH:  Judge, I don't really think this

23 is an issue that has to be addressed.  Mr. Tice and I

24 ran into this in our negotiations, and as he said, we
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1 agreed to disagree and remain silent, and we were.

2 But it came up and it wasn't the right place to bring

3 it up on the call that we had, the scheduling

4 conference we had the other day.

5         I don't know that it makes any difference

6 under which section the Commission has jurisdiction

7 to proceed in this case, as long as it has

8 jurisdiction.  So while we may disagree what

9 jurisdiction it is, I think it's sort of we don't

10 want tilted windmills here if we're already going to

11 get the same result.

12         The key difference between the two statutory

13 sections is, under 1.1, if there is a dispute, the

14 interpretation goes to the Commission.  Under 6D, if

15 there is a dispute, it is interpreted and decided by

16 the circuit court.  And I think that's what the

17 parties have agreed to.

18         Now, with respect to whether there will ever

19 be a disagreement or not, nobody certainly knows.  We

20 hope there isn't, but it's a long agreement.  And you

21 know, our view is it would be better for both parties

22 to have a local determination where both people are

23 in the community rather than up here.  Mr. Tice has

24 other legal concerns and they're his interpretation.
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1         But be that as it may, I would hope that the

2 Commission, or at least the Order, could say you have

3 jurisdiction under the municipal code and proceed

4 accordingly.  I don't know that it would be

5 necessary.  We're both going to the same goal.  This

6 is a procedural matter that we may be coming through

7 different ports of entry.

8         MR. TICE:  Your Honor, I want to correct

9 something that I think has been implied by Mr. Smith

10 that we both agree that, on this issue, that how the

11 agreement is enforced is not an issue here.  That's

12 not correct.  You cannot agree on jurisdiction.

13 Parties cannot agree on jurisdiction.  There has been

14 no agreement between the parties that either of these

15 two sections under the municipal code can be the

16 basis for the approval of this service area

17 agreement.

18         Wayne-White has made its point very clear at

19 the very beginning of the proceedings and the circuit

20 court in Hamilton County that if this matter came to

21 the Commission under an agreed service area

22 agreement, as it has today, that the Commission only

23 has jurisdiction for this agreement for approval of

24 it under 117-1.1 and 7.1.
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1         And the reason why this is important is

2 because this service area agreement changes customers

3 between the two electric suppliers.  This service

4 area agreement fixes service rights for individuals

5 within the City of McLeansboro, as well as within an

6 area surrounding McLeansboro, for a 25-year period.

7 These people cannot then switch around or anything

8 else.

9         And under existing law, under the -- if

10 there were no service area agreement, there is a

11 serious question whether or not people within the

12 City of McLeansboro can elect who their electric

13 supplier will be.  Not just through aggregators, but

14 rather through the distribution facilities in

15 addition, because that's the prior Illinois law here.

16 Under the Village of Chatham case, goes way back to a

17 long time.  Plus one other case that came before the

18 Commission between municipalities and rural electric

19 co-ops, and they involve municipalities and rural

20 electric co-ops.

21         There was one case between investor-owned

22 utilities and CILCO, as I recall, which went on into

23 the circuit court which the Fourth District ruled on.

24 Gave the customer, where it's an annexation to



26

1 Springfield out of CILCO's territory, and it gave

2 those people who annexed into Springfield a right to

3 choose.  CILCO customers could leave CILCO and go to

4 Springfield City Water Light and Power.  So they have

5 that right of choice.  This agreement takes that

6 right of choice away for this period of time.

7         And jurisdiction is important at the

8 Commission level for approval of the Order, because

9 if some customer down the road during the term of

10 this agreement decides that to collaterally attack

11 this Order on the basis of the improper section of

12 the Act, this agreement could be destroyed.  I don't

13 want to see that happen.  It's a good agreement for

14 both Wayne-White, and I believe as the witnesses have

15 said in their prepared testimony, it is for the City

16 likewise.

17         So I think it's important that we get the

18 proper section correct in which this agreement is

19 approved by the Commission.  I think you have done

20 that in your interpretation of the statute.  I

21 thought probably there would be no reason to have any

22 argument on it whatsoever.  Mr. Smith has raised the

23 question this morning and we believe it has to be

24 under the one which you have cited for your Proposed
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1 Order.

2         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.

3         MR. SMITH:  I think we're both getting to

4 the same goal.  We're both wanting this thing

5 approved.  As I said before, I don't know that it

6 makes any difference.  The only procedural matter

7 that I disagree with what Mr. Tice said, he made

8 reference to this matter coming up before the circuit

9 court.  The circuit court didn't have jurisdiction

10 over this particular matter.  I think he may have

11 misspoken.

12         But the lawsuit itself did not encompass

13 what this service area agreement does.  This service

14 area agreement goes way beyond the scope of what the

15 lawsuit was.  This is a matter that we had our

16 negotiations over, but we have resolved by trying not

17 to raise the issue.

18         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  As I

19 indicated, I have -- I would intend to cite to some

20 legal authority for the Commission in the Order.  It

21 was my intention to cite to the different authorities

22 that I mentioned.  And at this point, Mr. Smith

23 having raised two additional legal authorities which

24 he thinks are relevant, I would add to the Proposed



28

1 Order that McLeansboro has also referenced these two

2 particular sections, 117-2 and 117-6.

3         What my intention was -- and I will do

4 unless the parties indicate now it's a contested

5 matter and they wish to brief it, is simply refer to

6 the Illinois Municipal Code and the Electric Supplier

7 Act as the sections pursuant to which the agreement

8 has been entered.  I was not going to reference

9 specific sections.  And I don't think it's necessary

10 to reference specific sections.  But if the parties

11 want me to make a finding about which sections it is,

12 then that would require briefing and then I would

13 have to make a determination.  That is up to the

14 parties.

15         So is simply citing the statutory authority,

16 all of it that's been put in front of me, sufficient

17 for the parties or will the parties want the

18 Commission to make a finding as to which specific

19 sections they have jurisdiction under?

20         MR. SMITH:  We're okay with your general

21 approach.

22         MR. TICE:  I want to see what the Order

23 says.

24         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Okay.
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1         MR. TICE:  I'll reserve comment on that

2 until we see how you handle it in the Order, Judge.

3         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  That's fair.  That's

4 fine.

5         MR. TICE:  And if we think it impacts

6 adversely the jurisdictional basis for the Order in

7 the first place, then we'll raise exceptions.  If we

8 think it's acceptable as the way you word it so that

9 the jurisdictional basis for approving the Order is

10 not harmed subject to eventual collateral attack,

11 then we will not raise those exceptions.

12         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  That's fine.

13         MR. SMITH:  Fair enough.

14         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  I think that

15 takes care of the jurisdictional questions that I

16 had.

17         The next thing, I had sent the parties some

18 questions that came up to me as I read the testimony

19 which was filed earlier this month.  And the parties

20 have indicated to me that they would just go ahead

21 and put in the record as a stipulation the responses

22 to the questions.

23         MR. TICE:  Yes, that's correct, your Honor.

24 We will agree to if -- I don't know how you want to
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1 do it.  If you want to read the questions into the

2 record and let us stipulate we agree to the answer or

3 how you wish to do that.

4         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  That's fine.

5         Shall I begin then?

6         MR. TICE:  Yeah, sure.

7         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Looking at Exhibit 2

8 attached to the testimony of Mr. Donjon, that's a map

9 showing Diamond City area.  And Customers 3 through 8

10 listed on that Exhibit A-B attached to the petition

11 and the agreement and Coy Webb, my question was, am I

12 correct that Customers 3 through 8 and also 1 through

13 2 will remain Wayne-White customers?

14         MR. TICE:  That's correct, your Honor.

15         MR. SMITH:  And the answer is yes.

16         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  And that Wayne-White will

17 cease to provide service to Diamond City and Coy

18 Webb, who will then be served by McLeansboro?

19         MR. TICE:  That's also correct.

20         MR. SMITH:  The answer is yes.

21         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  And the only other

22 question that I still think I would like to put on

23 the record is looking at Mr. Donjon's testimony, page

24 14, lines 303 through 305, he referenced that
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1 Wayne-White Exhibit 6 also identifies with dots the

2 various locations of some of the electric service

3 presented presently provided in the area between

4 McLeansboro and Wayne-White.

5         What was intended by that "some of the

6 electric service".

7         MR. TICE:  It was intended -- the map was

8 intended to be an illustrative of the various

9 services, electric services, by each Wayne-White and

10 McLeansboro in those red and blue areas, and not all

11 inclusive of all of the electric services that may

12 currently exist.

13         MR. SMITH:  It may not reflect all,

14 everything, but it generally does.

15         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Okay.  Thank you.

16         And then I wanted to confirm my

17 understanding of the exclusive service territories,

18 which McLeansboro and Wayne-White were agreeing to in

19 this proceeding.  And what I understood from reading

20 the testimony is that McLeansboro will keep the

21 customers within the corporate limits subject to

22 specific Wayne-White exceptions.

23         MR. TICE:  That's correct.

24         MR. SMITH:  Yes, that's correct.
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1         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  That McLeansboro will get

2 School District Number 10's facilities.

3         MR. TICE:  That's correct.

4         MR. SMITH:  Yes.  It will serve that.  Will

5 get some of the facilities and will serve the high

6 school, correct.

7         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  And that McLeansboro will

8 get Diamond City and Coy Webb, which is the A-C

9 exhibit attached to the agreement.

10         MR. TICE:  That's correct.

11         MR. SMITH:  Yes.

12         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  McLeansboro will also

13 keep the red shaded area on Exhibit A-A and

14 Wayne-White Exhibit 6.

15         MR. SMITH:  Correct.

16         MR. TICE:  They get to serve in the red

17 shaded area, that's correct.

18         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  That red shaded area, the

19 only way it's designated in the testimony is just by

20 that red shaded area.  There are no legal

21 descriptions or other identifying --

22         MR. TICE:  No.  Except that you will find on

23 exhibit -- Wayne-White Exhibit 6, the large map, you

24 will find that they have placed the section numbers
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1 so that you can -- and outlined each of the sections,

2 the congressional sections, so that you can compare a

3 little easier to the boundary what really the

4 boundaries of the red shaded area would be.  When

5 someone looks at the map, they can say that's a

6 quarter, quarter section or half of a section.

7         MR. SMITH:  That's right.  I agree that

8 there is no other description in the record other

9 than the two maps of Exhibit A-A and Wayne-White

10 Exhibit 6, which should be the same.  A-A is the one

11 that's part of the Settlement Agreement and

12 Wayne-White Exhibit 6 does give a little better idea

13 of where those boundary lines are by reference to

14 section and quarter section areas.  We agree to that.

15         MR. TICE:  Exhibit 6 also identifies the

16 location of the high school, which the facilities --

17 electric facilities are changing from McLeansboro or

18 the electric service is changing from Wayne-White to

19 McLeansboro.

20         MR. SMITH:  That's correct.

21         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  Then my

22 understanding was that for Wayne-White, Wayne-White

23 would keep all the white area on Exhibits A-A and

24 Wayne-White Exhibit 6?
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1         MR. TICE:  That's correct.

2         MR. SMITH:  Yes.

3         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Wayne-White would keep

4 the blue area on Exhibit A-A and Wayne-White

5 Exhibit 6 subject to paragraphs 5E and 10 of the

6 agreement.

7         MR. TICE:  That's correct.

8         MR. SMITH:  Subject to 5.  I don't remember

9 if it's 5E.  Five and 10 do have the exceptions to

10 that, that's correct.

11         MR. TICE:  That deals with annexation,

12 Judge.

13         MR. SMITH:  Deals with annexation, that's

14 correct.

15         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Wayne-White will also

16 keep the eight customers on the A-B list.

17         MR. TICE:  That's correct.

18         MR. SMITH:  Yes.

19         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  And Wayne-White will keep

20 Hamco Heights, which is designated in orange on

21 Exhibit A-A and Wayne-White Exhibit 6.

22         MR. SMITH:  Correct.

23         MR. TICE:  That is correct, yes.

24         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Finally, Wayne-White will
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1 keep the shopping center designated as green on

2 Exhibit A-A and Wayne-White Exhibit 6.

3         MR. TICE:  That's correct.

4         MR. SMITH:  Yes, that's correct.

5         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Then I think that's all

6 we need to do as a preliminary matter.

7         My understanding is the parties are simply

8 going to move the testimony of their witnesses in.  I

9 know McLeansboro has already filed an affidavit for

10 Mayor Deitz.

11         MR. SMITH:  That's correct, on e-Docket.

12         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  On e-Docket.

13         Now, that was not identified by an exhibit

14 number.  I don't know if -- he has an attachment

15 which has been identified as Exhibit 1.1.  You could

16 call it 1.2 or you could call it Exhibit 2.

17         MR. SMITH:  I guess for consistency -- I

18 didn't mark it, I just called it affidavit.  If you

19 want it to be, I guess, we should probably mark it

20 Exhibit 1.2 then.  So I would move that the testimony

21 of Mayor Richard T. Deitz, together with --

22         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  I'm sorry.  Let me

23 interrupt you.  I see he has Exhibits 1.1 and 1.2, so

24 it would be three.  I am sorry.
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1         MR. SMITH:  I think you're --

2         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Check and see -- because

3 on my copy here, I have only one exhibit.  But I may

4 have failed to --

5         MR. SMITH:  I thought we only had 1.1, your

6 Honor.  1.0 is the testimony.

7         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Yes.

8         MR. SMITH:  And 1.1 was the City ordinance,

9 which included the agreement between the parties that

10 we're seeking Commission approval of.  I didn't think

11 there was another.  I see where you're referencing in

12 the affidavit.

13         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  May I suggest that

14 perhaps you may want to take a look at that and file

15 a corrected affidavit and have that identified as --

16 why don't we make it Exhibit 2, and then we can

17 decide right now regardless of how many attachments

18 there were to the testimony.

19         MR. SMITH:  I think there's exhibits -- I

20 understand what your reference is in terms of the

21 substance of the affidavit, which we will file a

22 corrected affidavit then.

23         So we would ask leave to admit the testimony

24 of Mayor Richard T. Deitz marked as McLeansboro 1.0
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1 together with Exhibit 1.1 and Exhibit 2, the

2 affidavit, which we would ask for leave to late file.

3         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Does Wayne-White have any

4 objection?

5         MR. TICE:  Have no objection.

6         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Very well then.

7         City of McLeansboro Exhibit 1.0, with

8 Exhibit 1.1, and the affidavit, which will be

9 identified as Exhibit 2 are admitted into evidence.

10                  (City of McLeansboro Exhibits 1.0,

11                  1.1 and 2 were admitted into

12                  evidence at this time.)

13         MR. SMITH:  Thank you.  That concludes our

14 case.

15         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Thank you.

16         Mr. Tice.

17         MR. TICE:  Why don't I, for procedural

18 purposes, Judge, just ask that Mr. Donjon be sworn

19 and I'll get his testimony verified, plus the new

20 exhibit, the small map of Exhibit 6, and Exhibit 6A.

21         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Very well.

22         Mr. Donjon, would you stand and raise your

23 right hand?

24         MR. DONJON:  Yes.
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1                 *    *    *    *    *

2                     DARYL DONJON,

3 of lawful age, produced, sworn and examined on behalf

4 of WAYNE-WHITE COUNTIES ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE

5 testifies and says:

6                  DIRECT EXAMINATION

7 QUESTIONS BY MR. TICE:

8     Q.  Would you state your name, please?

9     A.  Daryl, D-A-R-Y-L, middle initial A, last

10 name Donjon, D-O-N-J-O-N.

11     Q.  You are currently the president chief

12 executive officer of Wayne-White Counties Electric

13 Cooperative?

14     A.  Yes, I am.

15     Q.  And you have been in that -- served in that

16 capacity for how long, sir?

17     A.  Since September of 2005.

18     Q.  Are you familiar with your testimony which

19 has been prepared and marked as Wayne-White Exhibit

20 Number 1, which you have tendered in this proceeding?

21     A.  Yes, I am.

22     Q.  Have you read through that testimony

23 carefully, sir?

24     A.  Yes, I have.
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1     Q.  And is that testimony true and correct at

2 the present time?

3     A.  Yes, it is.

4     Q.  Have you also heard the questions asked by

5 the Administrative Law Judge referencing your

6 testimony and the testimony in this case, as well as

7 the Joint Petition, with respect to certain questions

8 for which clarification was asked?  Have you heard

9 those questions?

10     A.  Yes, I have.

11     Q.  And have you heard the answers to which I,

12 as your attorney for Wayne-White, and Mr. Smith as

13 attorney for the City of McLeansboro, have stipulated

14 to?

15     A.  Yes, I have.

16     Q.  You have heard -- you're familiar with

17 Wayne-White Exhibits 2 through 6 attached to your

18 testimony, are you not?

19     A.  Yes.  Yes, I am.

20     Q.  Are those exhibits true and correct?

21     A.  Yes, they are.

22     Q.  Did you cause to have those exhibits

23 prepared in preparation for your testimony to be

24 presented in this proceeding?
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1     A.  Yes, I have.

2     Q.  Were they prepared under your direction and

3 supervision?

4     A.  Yes.  Yes, they are.

5     Q.  In addition, are you familiar with an 8 1/2

6 x 11 size duplicate copy of the Wayne-White

7 Exhibit 6, the map?

8     A.  Yes, I am.

9     Q.  And we have marked that duplicate copy 8 1/2

10 x 11 in size of the Wayne-White Exhibit 6 as

11 Exhibit 6A.

12         Are you familiar with Wayne-White

13 Exhibit 6A?

14     A.  Yes.  Yes, I am.

15     Q.  Is that exhibit true and correct to the best

16 of your knowledge?

17     A.  Yes, it is.

18     Q.  Was it prepared under your supervision and

19 direction?

20     A.  Yes, it was.

21         MR. TICE:  I have no further testimony or no

22 further questions of this witness and ask that if

23 there's no questions on cross that his testimony be

24 admitted, along with Wayne-White Exhibits 2 through



41

1 6A.

2         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  I have one question for

3 Mr. Donjon.

4                  EXAMINATION

5 BY JUDGE VON QUALEN:

6     Q.  This is kind of stating the obvious.  But

7 you testified that you heard the answers provided to

8 the questions that I had asked for clarification.

9         Did you agree with the answers?

10     A.  Yes, I did.

11         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  Mr. Smith, do

12 you have any objections to Wayne-White Exhibits 1

13 through 6A?

14         MR. SMITH:  I have no questions and no

15 objection to the admission of the testimony and

16 exhibits.  Although I think we should note that 6A is

17 not yet on e-Docket and that it will need to be.

18         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  I will ask the court

19 reporter to mark it as Wayne-White Exhibit 6A.

20         MR. SMITH:  Just admitted here for today's

21 proceeding.

22         MR. TICE:  And it will go on e-Docket?

23         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Yes.

24         (Wayne-White Exhibit 6A was marked for
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1         identification by the Court Reporter.)

2         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Six A has been marked.

3 And so there are no exhibits.  So Wayne-White

4 Exhibits 1 through 6A, they are entered into

5 evidence.

6              (Wayne-White Exhibits 1 through 6A were

7              admitted into evidence at this time.)

8         MR. TICE:  We have nothing further, your

9 Honor.

10         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Thank you.

11         During our prehearing conference, we

12 discussed the timing for the Proposed Order and the

13 Commission Order in this proceeding.  And it was my

14 understanding that the parties would like the

15 Commission Order to be entered as soon as could be

16 reasonably entered.  We had discussed me sending out

17 a Proposed Order on June 25, 2014.  That is still my

18 intention.  We had agreed to briefs on exceptions,

19 must be received by July 9, 2014, and reply briefs on

20 exceptions by July 16, 2014.

21         MR. SMITH:  What was the first day?

22         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  July 9.

23         MR. SMITH:  Okay.

24         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  And I had indicated that
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1 if the parties had no exceptions and they let me know

2 that by June 27th, close of business, then I could

3 get it in front of the Commission for the next Bench

4 Session.

5         MR. SMITH:  That was the day I was thinking

6 about looking for.

7         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  That would be the

8 July 9th Bench.

9         Do the parties have anything else you wish

10 to discuss this morning?

11         MR. TICE:  Will you be sending the Proposed

12 Order out by e-mail?

13         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  I will.  And you will

14 receive a Word version of it.  I think you're both

15 familiar that if there are exceptions, the parties

16 must provide the actual changes that they wish in the

17 Order with the exceptions.

18         MR. SMITH:  Track changes.

19         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Yes.

20         MR. TICE:  Can I ask that you e-mail a copy

21 of that also to Jay Fyie, the other attorney of

22 record?

23         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Yes.

24         MR. TICE:  Jay, could you give us your
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1 e-mail?

2         MR. FYIE:  Yes, I can.  It is my name,

3 jayhfyie@fairfieldwireless.net.

4         MR. TICE:  I will also e-mail that to you,

5 Judge, for your convenience.

6         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  That would be good.

7 Thank you.

8         MR. SMITH:  I think it's on the pleading or

9 its in there somewhere.

10         MR. TICE:  It may be, but I'll e-mail it so

11 it's easy.  If you're like I am, I hate to have to

12 hunt for somebody's e-mail all the time.

13         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  I am always worried that

14 I will misspell them.

15         MR. SMITH:  It's easy enough to do.

16         We have nothing further.

17         MR. TICE:  We have nothing further, your

18 Honor.

19         JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  With that, I

20 will mark the record heard and taken.  Thank you

21 both.

22                  HEARD AND TAKEN.

23

24
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